
APPROVED 

 

1 

TOWN OF GILMANTON 
HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

ACADEMY BUILDING 
TUESDAY, JULY 5, 2011 – 7 p.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 

 

Present: Chairman Allen Everett, Ella Jo Regan, Don Guarino (Selectmen's 

Rep), George Roberts (alternate), Ernie Hudziec (alternate) 

Land Use Clerk – Annette Andreozzi 

Absent: Deborah Chase 
 

Chairman Everett opened the meeting at 7: 02PM with introductions.  
 

Ms. Regan made a motion for Mr. Everett to remain chair of the HDC.   

Seconded by Mr. Guarino.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Mr. Roberts recused himself from the next case as he is an abutter. 
 

Mr. Everett seated Mr. Hudziec as a voting member. 

 
  

Public Hearing - Case # 1-2011-Denise Gallant, 
owner/applicant: Request a change to existing garage door.  
Property located at 596 Meetinghouse Road in the Meetinghouse 
Historic District; Tax Map/Lot # 414/33. 

  

 

Ms. Gallant stated that she needed a new garage door, and would like to have 

windows in it.  The door will be painted the same color as it is now. 

 

Ms. Regan said that she didn’t think windows were permitted in the HDC 

regulations. 

 

Ms. Gallant stated that the Bartlett, up the street, have replaced their garage 

door with one that has windows. 

 

Mr. Everett said that the HDC has not given permission for any one to put 

windows in a garage door if it faces the street. 

 

Ms. Regan asked if there were other windows in the garage.  Ms. Gallant said 

no. 

 



APPROVED 

 

2 

Ms. Regan said that the regulations are clearly stated.  She read from the 

regulations “If garage doors swing on hinges or roll horizontally, they may be placed 
on any side of the building. If they open vertically, they may not be placed on the side 
facing the public road and must be as inconspicuous as possible. Garage doors may 

not have windows.”  She stated, that if someone has violated the regs, the HDC 

needs to address the violation, not change the regs.  Regs don’t mean 

anything if they are altered whenever someone comes before the Commission 

with a proposal.  The proposed garage does have lights. 

 

Mr. Roberts, an abutter, was against the application because it was for a steel 

door and said that the HDC regs don’t allow steel for anything.  He also stated 

that no garage doors have been approved with windows, and several 

applicants have been denied windows in doors. 

 

Ms. Gallant said that she wanted a different look for her door. 

 

Mr. Roberts said that the only exception made for windows in doors, were those 

not facing the street. 

 

Ms. Gallant asked what she would have to do to replace the door. 

 

Mr. Everett said the door would need to be wood composite. 

 

Ms. Regan said the new door needs to looks like the one that is there. 

  

 

Ms. Regan moved to close the public hearing.  Seconded by Mr. Hudziec. 

Motion passed unanimously.   

 

Mr. Guarino looked though the regs and said that he could not find any place 

where is said that steel garage doors were not allowed.  Mr. Everett directed 

him to the area about building materials. 

 

There was a discussion on building materials and possible options that Ms. 

Gallant might have.  Mr. Hudziec asked if a sample could be provided by the 

door supplier for the meeting next month.  Mr. Guarino said he wanted the HDC 

to be as accommodating as possible. 

 

 

Ms. Regan moved to approve Case # 1-2011Denise Gallant, owner/applicant: 

Request with the following conditions: 

That the door replacement be in the same style and material as the present 

door with no windows. 

Mr. Hudziec seconded the motion.   



APPROVED 

 

3 

Mr. Guarino was concerned that people would be required to put in non-

insulated doors.  Ms. Regan said she needed to see an example of the steel 

material to be able to determine if it could be allowed. 

 

After more discussion Ms. Regan asked to withdraw her motion. 

 

Ms. Regan moved to continue Case # 1-2011Denise Gallant, owner/applicant to 

the next scheduled HDC meeting on August 2, 2011.  Mr. Hudziec seconded. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

The clerk was directed to inform the applicant that she could replace the 

garage door with one of the same material and style, or she could have a 

sample of a different material presented at the next HDC meeting.  

  

 

Other Business. 

 

Tom Scribner, representing the Corner Library Trustees, informed the HDC, that 

the Trustees need to replace the sills at the library, and remove some shrubbery.  

They would like to put in a walkway to the driveway, but that is still in the 

concept phase.  The Trustees were working with the Selectmen. 

   

Mr. Guarino said the Selectmen try to stay in harmony with the HDC regs on 

town buildings, but legally the town doesn’t have to abide by the HDC regs.   

 

Mr. Everett stated that the fixes weren’t going to be major, and the HDC would 

like to be kept updated on the proposals. 

 

There was a discussion of materials that might possibly be used on the walkway. 

 

Mr. Scribner said in the very long range the Trustees want to do something with 

the wall in front of the building. 

 

There was a discussion about clapboards coming all the way down to the 

ground or putting in a skirt board.  Some further investigation into the look of the 

building in the past will be done before the decision is made. 

 

 

Approval of Minutes  March 1, 2011. 

 

Ms. Regan  motioned to accept the minutes of March 1, 2011.   

Second by Mr. Guarino. 

Motion passed unanimously with Mr. Hudziec abstaining. 

 



APPROVED 

 

4 

Mr. Guarino mentioned that the house next to the Church had been 

purchased, and the buyers have great plans for it. 

 

The clerk will send a copy of the HDC regs to the new owners.  

 

 

Ms. Regan moved to adjourn.  Seconded by Mr. Roberts 

All in favor. 

 

 

Adjourned at 7:55PM 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Annette Andreozzi 

Land Use Clerk 


